ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 16, 2005
1: 05 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 2

Uging the United States Congress to pass legislation to open
the coastal plain of the Arctic National WIdlife Refuge,
Al aska, to oil and gas exploration, devel opnent, and producti on.

- MOVED SJR 2 QUT OF COW TTEE
OVERVI EW  ENSTAR NATURAL GAS COVPANY
- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 107

"An Act providing for the award of full actual attorney fees and
costs to a person aggrieved by unlawful obstruction or hindrance
of hunting, fishing, or viewing of fish or game; anending Rules
79 and 82, Alaska Rules of GCvil Procedure; and anending Rule
508, Al aska Rul es of Appellate Procedure."”

- MOVED CSHB 107 (RES) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 130
"An Act granting certain state land to the University of Al aska

and establishing the university research forest; and providing
for an effective date."

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 16, 2005



- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SJR 2

SHORT TI TLE: ENDORSI NG ANVR LEASI NG

SPONSOR( S): RESOURCES

01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 11/ 05 (S) RES

01/ 26/ 05 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 26/ 05 (S) Moved SIJR 2 Qut of Committee

01/ 26/ 05 (S) M NUTE( RES)

01/ 27/ 05 (S) RES RPT 5DP 1DNP

01/ 27/ 05 (S) DP: WAGONER, STEVENS B,
SEEKI NS, DYSON

01/ 27/ 05 (S) DNP: ELTON

02/ 09/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 09/ 05 (S) VERSI ON: SJR 2

02/ 14/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 14/ 05 (H) RES

02/ 16/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BI LL: HB 107

SHORT TI TLE: ATTY FEES: HUNTI NG FI SHI NG | NTERFERENCE

SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAVRAS

01/ 24/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 24/ 05 (H) RES, JUD

02/ 02/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 02/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 05 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 09/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 09/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 05 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 16/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 130

SHORT TI TLE: UNI VERSI TY LAND GRANT/ STATE FOREST

SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 07/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 07/ 05 (H) RES, FIN

02/ 09/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 09/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 05 (H) M NUTE( RES)

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 2- February 16, 2005

STEDIVAN,



02/ 14/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 14/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 14/ 05 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 16/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

TONY | ZZO, President

ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany ( ENSTAR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on ENSTAR s operations
and natural gas price predictions for the future.

JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 107 on behal f of Representative
Ranr as, sponsor.

MYRL THOMPSON
Susitna Val l ey, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JI M BRENNAN
VWAarm Spri ngs Bay, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

CHRI STI NE LUNDSTEDT
Sitka and Baranof Warm Springs, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

MELI NDA HOFSTAD
Warm Springs Bay, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

ALBERT HOFSTAD, Commercial Fi sherman
Warm Springs Bay, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JI M SLATER, Engi neer and Commerci al Fi sherman
Pel i can, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

CAROL MARTI NEZ

Mt kof I sl and
Pet er sburg, Al aska

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 16, 2005



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

M KE SALLEE, Sawm || Operator
Ket chi kan, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JENNI FER PRI CE
Sitka and Warm Spring Bay, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

JOHN HI RSCHENREI DER
Warm Springs Bay, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

ROBERT LCEFFLER, Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB 130.

Bl LL BURTON, Co- Oamner

Kodi ak Gane Ranch at Narrow Cape

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 130.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMUELS called the House Resources Standing
Conmittee neeting to order at 1:05:39 PM Representati ves
LeDoux, Elkins, Crawford, Kapsner, Ranras, Sanuels, Seaton,
A son, and Gatto were present at the call to order.

SJR  2- ENDORSI NG ANVR LEASI NG

CO CHAIR SAMJELS announced that the first order of business
woul d be SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 2 Urging the United States
Congress to pass legislation to open the coastal plain of the
Arctic National WIdlife Refuge, Alaska, to oil and gas
expl oration, devel opnment, and producti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report SJR 2 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, it was so ordered.

OVERVI EW ENSTAR Nat ural Gas Conpany

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 4- February 16, 2005



1: 07: 31 PM

TONY 12Z0O, President, ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany, said that
ENSTAR has been in business for 44 years, serving over 300,000
peopl e. He said that ENSTAR has 400 mles of high-pressure
transm ssion pipeline that the conpany has owned and operated
for over 40 years. Resi dential hones conprise 88 percent of
ENSTAR s custoners, and the remainder is nostly small comercia
busi nesses. Nat ural gas costs consuners in Anchorage $5.11 per
mllion BTUs, conpared with $13.28 per nillion BTUs for fuel oi
and $26.98 for propane.

M. 1ZZO said he is concerned about gas production declining in
Cook Inlet. Sonme of the fields are not accessible to utilities,
he said. He noted that the Departnent of Energy studied the
supply situation in Cook Inlet. In 2012, supply will go bel ow
demand, he noted, although there are small discoveries that may
briefly extend that date.

M. 1ZZO said he asked the Departnent of Energy to factor out
fields that are not accessible, which then makes demand out pace
supply in 20009. Cook Inlet gas inpacts 473,000 people, he
reported, and about one third of the power used in Fairbanks is
generated in Southcentral with Cook Inlet gas.

M. 1ZZO said the cost of gas to producers is $3.93 per thousand
cubic feet. Most of the gas that ENSTAR distributes comes from
Mar at hon, which costs $3.33 per thousand cubic feet, he added

He predicted that the gas ENSTAR will be buying in the future
will cost nore because it will be a supply and demand nmarket,
i nstead of a buyer's market. He said that ENSTAR | ooks for new
gas supplies everyday. He added that the conpany needs to
proceed as if North Slope gas wll never cone, even though it
w shes that gas were avail abl e today.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said he has been told that natural gas in the
ground is worth less than nothing, and it has no value until it
gets to the market. He asked if sone small operators have
access to gas but not to the pipes, which inhibits their
notivation to explore.

M. 1ZZO said producers do have problenms with access to ENSTAR s
system "W will be happy to bring on any new supply and nove
it for any custoner,"” he said, and he disagreed that there is no
val ue, because in 2000 he went to all producers and they
woul dn't sell their gas. He supposed that the conpani es needed
to obtain capital "and get approval from their corporate

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 16, 2005



headquarters in Houston or wherever - they needed to conpete for
returns that they could get elsewhere in the country and in the
world." He added that producers |ook at openings in the market,
so it mght be difficult to invest now for an unknown market in
t he future.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked if the pipe that ENSTAR owns is full.

M. 1ZZ0O said that ENSTAR owns a good portion of the pipe, and
there is excess space, especially in non-w nter nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what woul d happen to the price of gas
if a tanker shows up with gas in Cook Inlet.

M. 1ZZO said he didn't know, but theoretically it could drop
the price.

M. 1ZZO told the committee that the DOE gas study put forth
three options for neeting supply. The first, he said, was by
investing nore noney into Cook Inlet fields and hoping that they
can squeeze out nore gas, which 1is very expensive and

specul ative, and it would likely only be a small increase in
supply. The second option is new exploration, but it could cost
up to $6 billion to get the gas, and it is also speculative.
The third option is to "look north,” which is his preferred
alternative, he said. A spur line to the North Slope could
access a 500-year supply of gas at a good price, M. 1zzo noted,
and it could also provide val ue-added opportunities. He said

his conmpany is al so | ooking at storage options and spur |ines.
1:33:58 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked M. |zzo about the potential value of |and
in the Nenana Basin proposed to be transferred to the university
in HB 130.

M. 1ZZO said that Fairbanks has 700 gas custoners, and their

gas is liquefied in the Cook Inlet area and trucked north.
Fai rbanks is 30 percent colder than Anchorage, so M. lzzo said
the market is simlar to Southcentral. Al aska has had nmuch

grow h based on access to cheap energy, and he believes that
there would be simlar growh spurts if there is long-term
access to energy. The potential value to the University will be
great, he concl uded.

1: 39: 40 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 16, 2005



M. 1ZZO predicts a significant negative inpact to Alaska's
econony by 2009 if gas isn't brought from the North Sl ope soon
Residents will have to convert to oil systens and then they wl|
have to pay two and a half tines the price of gas. Getting
North Sl ope gas quickly could be an econom c boon, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what it costs for a building to be
converted fromgas to oil

M. 1ZZO said hone conversions would be at |east $5, 000. It is
his opinion that Alaska may be able to postpone the drop in
supply with new discoveries, but he said that "living from hand
to nouth" is not confortable, and if we wait until 2020, there
coul d be econom c di saster.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is a backup pl an.

M. 1ZZO said that ENSTAR operates as if North Slope gas wl
never cone. So there are backup options, but from DNR
information there will be upward pressure on price. So "why put
the econony through that type of negative change with prices
rising as supplies decline?" he asked.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about a plan of going into Honer.

M. 1ZZO said there is a contract in place, but it will be an
i ndependent system

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked if any producers are hol di ng back on gas.

M. 1ZZO said it is difficult for himto know the big picture
That is why the Departnment of Energy was asked to gather the
i nformation.

1:46: 52 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked what the tariff is for trucking natura
gas, and what is involved in vaporizing the gas.

MR 1ZZO said the tariff is proprietary information. Prior to
bei ng deregulated the tariff was 50 percent higher than ENSTAR
Vapori zation turbines are used to heat the gas and conpress it
and push it out into the system

1:48:52 PM

HB 107- ATTY FEES: HUNTI NG FI SHI NG | NTERFERENCE

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 16, 2005



CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 107 "An Act providing for the award of ful
actual attorney fees and costs to a person aggrieved by unl awf ul
obstruction or hindrance of hunting, fishing, or viewing of fish
or gane; anending Rules 79 and 82, Alaska Rules of GCvil
Procedure; and anending Rule 508, Alaska Rules of Appellate
Procedure. ™"

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 107, Version 24-1S0444\Y, Ut ernohle,
2/11/05, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version Y
was before the conmttee.

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Ranras, noted the change on
page 2, line 20, which allows the prevailing party to be
entitled to reasonabl e actual attorney fees and costs.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he was going to offer an anmendnent to
exclude comrercial fishernmen from HB 107 because he thinks it
could lead to nunerous |lawsuits between fishernmen, since anyone
who receives a citation can be considered unlawful. He said he
is not going to offer an anendnent because he wants to protect
fishermen from other Kkinds of intentional obstruction, but he
wanted to discuss it.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she is not concerned, because the
fishermen would still have to prove how nuch they |ost, which
m ght be difficult.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he thinks "the potential here for
commercial fishermen to be suing one another is horrendous."”

COCHAIR RAMRAS said the intent was to protect hunters and

trappers, "and now we seemto be inside of a fishnet." He asked
if Representative Seaton would I|ike to offer a conceptual
amendment .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants to protect the fishing
industry wthout allowing the kind of lawsuits he spoke of
previously. He added that he supports the exenptions of the |aw
enforcenment officials.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that Representative Seaton's

concern is valid, so he suggested keeping comercial fishernen
under Rule 82 of the Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 16, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that m ght be a good suggesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he <could not get by the words
"reasonabl e, actual"” in the bill because they can be nmnutually
excl usi ve.

MR. POUND said that the definition of "intentionally obstruct”
woul d not be relevant to fishing conpetition.

2:02: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD said the bill also says "hinder," which
wi |l have as nuch weight at "intentionally obstruct."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that is exactly what a fishernen
wants to do: try to get situated in a superior position

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that either person who | oses nust pay
full attorney fees, so that may elimnate the possibility of
frivolous |lawsuits.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of f ered Conceptual Anmendnent 1:

Section 3;
Insert "Commercial fishing operations will remain
under Rule 82, Al aska Rules of Cvil Procedure.™

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO namde an objection and asked if conmerci al
hunt ers shoul d be i ncl uded.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said there is a significant difference between
commercial fishing and conmercial hunti ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said if a guiding service were to nove in
on a conpetitor, soneone mght be hindered, and he said it is
wor t h di scussi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON  expl ai ned t hat | awf ul conpetitive
practices will protect those guides, as far as he knows.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he wi shed a conmercial guide were here
to make sure.

MR POUND said that the committee addressed that issue in

reviving the guide board, and there is existing statute dealing
wi t h gui di ng.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 16, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he forgot that they discussed that
bill, and he can support the bill with the Arendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO wi t hdr ew obj ecti on.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked whether there was any further objection to
adopting conceptual Amendnment 1. There being no objection, it
was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report CSHB 107, Version 24-
LS0444\Y, Uternmohle, 2/11/05, out of commttee with individua
recommendat i ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO objected to discuss the terns "reasonabl e"
and "actual ." He said he doesn't think the two words can be
conbi ned sensi bly.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that as |ong as actual attorney
fees were reasonable, the prevailing party wll get the full
actual fees, but it would have to be determ ned reasonable by
t he judge.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said Representative Seaton is accurate; it
just gives the judge discretion on what is reasonabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked why not just say reasonabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX replied that if it just said reasonable it
gives too nuch leeway to the judge, who m ght not even take into
account what the fees actually were.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he does not get it and thinks it is a
matter of granmmar and not interpretation. Addi ng actual to
reasonabl e adds silt to the water, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX suggested the commttee ask Legislative
Legal Servi ces.

COCHAIR RAMRAS said that the bill wll find its way to the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee, which can deal with it.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD suggested the commttee get a quick
answer .

The commttee took an at-ease from2:13 PMto 2:21 PM

2:21: 52 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -10- February 16, 2005



MR. POUND stated that he found the termnology in the Al aska
Rules of Gvil Procedure: "and shall pay reasonable actual
attorney fees incurred...”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report CSHB 107, Version 24-
LS0444\Y, Uernohle, 2/11/05,, as anended, out of conmttee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no further objection, CSHB 107(RES) was reported
fromthe House Resources Standing Commttee.

HB 130- UNI VERSI TY LAND GRANT/ STATE FOREST

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 130 "An Act granting certain state land to
the University of Alaska and establishing the university
research forest; and providing for an effective date.”

MYRL THOMPSON, Susitna Valley, said he has been a victim of
another fast-track bill, and skirting the public process is
probl emati c. He said he called his comunity council nenbers
and community | eaders regarding HB 130, and across all political
parties only one person had heard that 1,700 acres of |and al ong
WIllow Creek and Frying Pan Lake were up for disposal to the
university, and all were concerned. He related a vignette of a
mountain adjacent to lands his famly owns in the |ower 48.
Devel opers took the trees, then the topsoil, and then the rock
and gravel . After seven years the nountain was gone, he said.
M. Thonpson is concerned that the sanme could happen on HB 130
| ands, because there is a very aggressive tinber chip conpany
that is interested in university |and. He said that the public
needs to be brought into the process, and "it is a good idea to
go local and check with people before you fast track public
lands into private industry, which is probably what's going to
happen to this. I would rather see you give $5 mllion a year
in cash to the university and go about public lands in another
way. "

2:27:55 PM

JI' M BRENNAN, Warm Springs Bay, noted that there are two units in
DNR s area plan that are subsumed by HB 130: the |agoon and a
parcel bordering Baranof Lake. The area plan noted that both
parcels are largely wetland, he said, and even though the | ands
were selected by the state from the federal government for

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -11- February 16, 2005



renote settlenent, the selection docunent had noted that |and
suitable for developnent is very limted and should be directed
where the town site comunity now is, at the head of the bay.
There are nunerous, snall private parcels in that area, many of
whi ch are still undevel oped, he said.

MR. BRENNAN said that DNR s area plan classifies the units in HB
130 as mni-dispersed recreation, which s defined as
"recreational pursuits that are not site-specific in nature,
such as beach conbing, recreational boating, or wldlife
vi ewi ng. " DNR s managenent intent is to retain it in state
ownership "to protect the salt |l|agoon, nmintain the natural
resources/scenic values of the parcel and insure continuation of

its use for dispersed recreation.™ He said he is a third-
generation Al askan from Sout heast, and he has been going to Warm
Springs Bay since he was a kid. "Uni que Al askan pl aces shared

and appreciated by the public the way they are now, should not
be irrevocably given up for some snmall devel opment in exchange
for what's going to anobunt to chunp change," he said.

2:31:44 PM

CHRI STI NE LUNDSTEDT, Sitka and Baranof Warm Springs, expressed
concern that the governor has been working on the university
land transfer for nore than a year, and the public is just
becomi ng aware of it. She said that at the first hearing of HB
130, only "a handful" of people were allowed to testify, and
then during the next hearing each witness was initially given
three mnutes, then the commttee co-chair changed it to two
m nutes. She added that less than half of the hearing tinme was
devoted to public testinony. She said that "people have taken
time off from their jobs for two days to try to talk, and
couldn't." She added that Joe Beedle and Mary Montgonmery were
allowed to "lobby for this give-away. They took up a huge
anount of public tinme."

CO CHAIR RAMRAS interposed and said that M. Lundstedt was not
getting to her testinmony, "which we would appreciate,” and that
there are 60 to 80 people that would like to testify.

M5. LUNDSTEDT responded that, "You're taking up ny tinme, |
think, right now" She added that the way the public has been

received has been very nuch "in line with the legislation
itself, and it was very sad to see that you interrupted person
after person after asking them transparently irrelevant
guestions and using up their tine." She pointed out to the co-

chair that he is on television and many people have remarked at

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -12- February 16, 2005



how he has been smrking and rolling his eyes during public
t esti nony. "A lot of people have seen this contenpt and
derision, and it has been inpossible to ignore,"” she added.

M5. LUNDSTEDT said that Co-Chair Ranras stated that the public
and | ocal governnents are not being short changed on the tine
al l owed for involvenent. She countered that in Petersburg "the
university called fromthe airport and said they would neet with
residents two hours in advance." She said that HB 130 wll
never pass public scrutiny and wll "transform our beautiful
Sitka Sound" w thout Sitka being able to do anything about it.
HB 130 "carves the heart" out of Warm Spring Bay, she said, and
is "in direct defiance" to DNR s area plans. "Joe Beedle talked
around the real issue, here, and that is once the university
gets 270,000 acres...of public land...the university system owns
it [and] does not need to ask anyone's permssion to strike
their deals and get cash.” She added that any easenent given
for the benefit of locals can be vacated as soon as the
university sells its |and. The university can neet wth |ocal
people if it wants to, but it has no obligation to include the

public in decision-making, she said. Ms. Lundstedt opined that
HB 130 is a terrible way to fund the university. "The public
land transfer wll provide one percent of the wuniversity's
budget, and our precious public lands are gone forever," she
sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked about the Lisianski area and
Biorka Island, which he heard was a sea lion pullout and the
mari ne nanmal act won't allowits use.

MS. LUNDSTEDT responded that the city already made its nove to

make M ddle Island available for the public. People are very
steaned, she said. She added that the university has to say
they want this land, but the land will be hard to sell. Access
and utilities will be difficult, particularly for Biorka and

M ddl e | sl ands.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS conmented that the co-chair has "gone to
length to try to pacify the public in relation to 130, and
they' ve taken a big step here to continue these hearings, at the
sanme tine to reassess any novenent on this legislation until
t hey can work out sone of these problens.”

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS said that he will work on his freshman form

MELI NDA HOFSTAD, Warm Springs Bay, said she went to a neeting
| ast week with representatives from DNR and the university and

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -13- February 16, 2005



was shocked that there is a 267-acre parcel in Warm Springs Bay
that has already been determined to be transferred from public
hands. She said she has been a property owner there for al nost
30 years, and it was the first she heard about it. She said
that the DNR representative told the attendees that there had
been no public hearings to determne which |ands would be
included in HB 130, "because he only had four nonths to do his

work and the governor wanted this bill, this session.” She
added that the majority of the Baranof property is wetland and
steep terrain. DNR has said that the land is unsuitable for

home sites, she said, which seenms to be what the wuniversity
wants to do with it.

MS. HOFSTAD said that HB 130 has had no public process, and she
requests that the legislation be pulled and that the state start
over with an open public process. She said that Baranof Warm
Springs is in the Sitka Borough, and the Sitka Assenbly held an
energency neeting and unaninously opposed HB 130 because it
knows it could not afford sewer and water systens, schools,
docks, har bor s, and fire protection that this type of
devel opnment would require. “In the <case of Baranof Warm
Springs, you would be taking a century-old historic village of
15.4 private acres and adding an additional 267 acres of
devel opnment to it with absolutely no input from those of us who
already live here," she said. And she asked the committee to
think about how they would feel if a bureaucracy arbitrarily
i ncreased the size of their community by 18 tinmes w thout public
i nput .

2:43: 39 PM

ALBERT HOFSTAD, Conmercial Fisherman, Warm Springs Bay, said he
has been going to Baranof Warm Springs for 50 years, and he is
worried about the inpact of developnent on the wld stock of
salnon that enters the bay and spawn by the falls and the dock.
He said that the salnon go in and out of the salt |agoon. He
said his main worry is developrment with drilling and blasting

whi ch could divert the hot springs.

2:45:14 PM

JIM SLATER, Engineer and Commercial Fisherman, Pelican, said
Pelican will be significantly affected by HB 130. He said he
made his home in Lisianski Inlet for business and because of its
natural beauty and subsistence opportunities, and the proposed
| and grant threatens his way of |ife and his business. He noted
that the anobunt of land to be transferred is over 1000 acres,

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -14- February 16, 2005



dwarfing the amount of private land now in Lisianski Inlet. The
effect of the land transfer on the environment and the
surroundi ng communities is overwhel m ng, unstudied, and unknown,
he sai d. He added that the local utilities are overloaded and
nost of the surrounding subdivisions discharge sewage directly
into the inlet, so he requested a study of any increase in waste
into the inlet. He said that the Northern Southeast Area Plan

went through a public process, and the university will not be
required to stay wth that plan. "I'f you transfer any of this
| and out of the public domain w thout safeguarding the needs of
| ocal comunities, | believe it is a failure of your duty as

elected officials, he st at ed. He said the |lands are used for
wat er supply and subsi st ence.

CO- CHAIR RAMRAS interjected to ask how M. Slater accesses the
| and for subsistence uses.

MR. SLATER answered that nostly the national forest cones down
to the shore, but that if people own a lot, they walk onto the
Tongass without trails. O hers noor their skiffs to access the
forest. He continued to discuss the parcel in HB 130 on Yakob
| sl and, where nost of the surrounding land is wilderness. It is
also a boater's refuge from rough weather, he said, and nost
| ocal fishing boats sell fish there. "Yakobi Island is premer
wi | derness,” and the local community has worked hard to protect
it, he said. The mechanism of land grants to fund a university
is antiquated and robs the public of its right to be involved in
t he di sposal of public assets.

MR. SLATER requested that parcel M1001 is elimnated from SB
130, and that parcel SP1002 is substantially reduced in size to
be consistent with the community devel opment plan and that it go

through a public process. He also requested that conmttee
menbers consider all comunities and not just those in their
particular district. He stated that he had witten testinony

from Norm Carson, who was not given tine to speak previously.
M. Slater was denied the opportunity to read it.

2:50: 26 PM

CAROL MARTINEZ, Mtkof Island, Petersburg, said her Tlingit
ancestors have lived on Mtkof Island since tine inmenorial.

"Gving all of these lands for possible private sales, or
what ever UAF intends, would devastate ny Native comunity," she
sai d. She added that access to native foods for food, art,

culture and teaching children is a necessity to the tribal
heritage. There are less than 400 tribal nenbers in Petersburg,

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 15- February 16, 2005



and "having access to these native foods 1is inperative."
Subsi stence neans survival, she said. She added that she just
found out about HB 130 and its fast track, and she is appalled
that the "state government is not taking into heart our best
interests,” and she respectfully asked +the conmttee to
reconsi der.

2:52: 12 PM

M KE SALLEE, Sawm || Operator, Ketchikan, Al aska, said he was
born in Ketchikan. He expressed unease about how the University
of Alaska logs their | ands. He added, "Southeast Al aska has
been coughing up tinber at an unsustainable rate for the last 50
plus years through grand-scale harvest...consisting of clear
cuts on federal, state and private |ands. Now we are squabbling
over the renote and scattered dregs of commercial tinber that is
left.”

MR. SALLEE said he objects to both Senator Mirkowski's pronotion

of giving the wuniversity 250,000 acres of federal Iand and
Governor Miurkowski's desire to match that with state |and. "1 f
by sonme stretch of the |law the Mirkowski's succeed in pulling
off these land grabs, | would insist on extrenmely rigid and
binding covenants in perpetuity through all prospective

ownerships that prohibit clear cutting, round |og export, and
any other tinber extractions exceeding the 10,000 board foot per
year personal use allocation the U S. Forest Service currently
adm nisters on federal I|ands.” Specifically, M. Sallee said,
the Mser Bay parcel is nostly steep ground not suitable for
home sites, and he is "very apprehensive" about devel oping Wl f
Lakes trail for industrial tourism He said he was a nenber of
the Ceveland Users Coalition which opposed road access and
l ogging on the Ceveland Peninsula. "The Ceveland is one of a
dwi ndl ing nunber of places accessible to local hunters.” He
concluded that DNR has not responded adequately to the public's
comments on the Central and Southern Southeast Area Plans, and
it is irresponsible to use HB 130 to avoid addressing the
public's concerns. He added that he does not trust the
university's promse to address public concerns after "the
egregious breach of public trust that occurred here in
Ket chi kan" with regard to | oggi ng at south Tongass.

2:56:12 PM

JENNI FER PRI CE, Sitka and Warm Springs Bay, said she is opposed
to HB 130 because | arge-scal e devel opnent will negatively inpact
the settlement at Warm Springs Bay. She added that she is

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 16- February 16, 2005



disillusioned by the way this bill was nade public. Ms. Price
has a charter business, and she is famliar with many of the
Sout heast lands in HB 130, and nost of them are "glittering
jewels...which would be negatively transforned by any |[arge-
scal e devel opnment." She concluded that she hopes that HB 130 is
t hrown out .

JOHN HI RSCHENREI DER, WArm Springs Bay, stated that he is opposed

to HB 130 for all reasons previously nentioned. "I would like
you to consider conpletely canning the bill,"” he said. "And |
believe that nobst Al askans would be in favor of a small incone

tax if it was earmarked for the university,"” which would be nore

dependabl e, he sai d.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked M. Loeffler to update the conmttee on
how DNR is changing HB 130, "so the folks wll feel nore
confortabl e about this process.™

ROBERT LOEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land and Water,
Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), Juneau, said DNR is going
through testinony "and we will look at things we can do." He
said, "Exanples of parcels being the Kodiak |aunch parcel,
problens at Neet [ s] Bay, some  of the public process
guestions...of section 6, sone of the questions with respect to
borough entitlenents that | think the mayor of Craig and sone
ot hers discussed, sonme of the other properties that we've also
heard from and questions of easenents and trails that have not
been reviewed, or that should be reserved out and/or find a
process to do that, and exanples of facilities...such as the
wat ershed  or wat er system at Plort] Al exander, Poi nt
Protection.™ He said DNR and the wuniversity will continue to
listen to testinmony and try to accommopdate them

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD requested that DNR find parcels closer
to population centers of Alaska, like WIlow where there is
60, 000 acres. He said part of that is suitable for settlenent
and it is closer to people and nore easily turned into cash.

Bl LL BURTON, Co-Owner, Kodiak Ganme Ranch at Narrow Cape, Kodi ak,
said HB 130 includes 2,800 acres of the ranch's |ease area. He
said the |eases keep the land open to the public; wthout the
| eases it would have been in private |ands. "If this is taken
by the university it could prevent public access, not only to
the Narrow Cape area but also to the rest of the ranch which
includes...hunting and fishing areas that the public has been
using ever since we've had the place,"” he said. He noted that
he is opposed to HB 130 unless the university can give both the

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -17- February 16, 2005



borough and the ranch a witten agreenent that all current |and
agreenents renmain in effect. He added that the ranch may not be
able to renew the lease. He said SB 130 will take the mpjority
of his livestock winter range, which is absolutely essential to
his operation. He spoke of a fencing contract with DNR and he
has al ready bought the fencing. He would need to be reinbursed
for the materials or continue with the signed contract. He said
he is not against the launch conplex and he believes in mlitary
research, but he doesn't see where it qualifies the university
to take all that | and. He said he would like to see a |ease
renewal right witten into the bill.

3:05:46 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS suspended public testinmony and said that the
university and DNR will work on SB 130. He said, "One of the
wonder ful things about living in Arerica and living in Alaska is
access to private |and. | think folks are...thinking of tract
honmes going into these renote sites; this is about private
peopl e... having access to land slowy in a careful nethodical
way over the next 20 years and nore, and expandi ng the ownership
of private lands in Alaska which is a noble effort, but we're
going to be very sensitive to the issues and as they effect
i ndi vi dual communities along the way."

[ HB 130 was hel d over.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Resources Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 3:06:54
PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 18- February 16, 2005



